# GOLDEN RIVERS NETBALL LEAGUE INC

**RULES** 

**BY-LAWS** 

STATEMENT OF PURPOSES

**ADOPTED 2002** 

CONTENTS	Page
Statement of Purposes	3
1. Member Clubs	4
2. Administration	4
3. Meetings	5
4. Finance	5
5. Membership	5
6. Registration	6
7. Age Requirements	6
8. Ineligible Players	6
9. Clearance	6
10. Shared Players	7
11. Dress Code	8
12. Umpires	8
13. Conduct of Matches	8
14.Scoring	9
15.Forfeits	10
16. Finals Matches	10
17. Awards	11
18. Risk Management	11-13
19. Indemnity	14
Annexure A: Executive Rotation	15
Annexure B: Affiliation Fees	15
Annexure C: Grand Final Payments	15
Annexure D: Junior Distinction	16
Annexure E: Life Membership Application	17-18

#### STATEMENT OF PURPOSES

#### 1. NAME

The Name of the Incorporated Association is the Golden Rovers Netball League Incorporated ("the Association").

#### 2. PURPOSES OF THE INCORPORATION

The purposes of which the Association is established to:

- (a) encourage and promote Netball in the Golden Rivers Netball League area.
- (b) promote the Australian national game of netball.
- organize the conduct of day competition, making rules and regulations and establish procedures for the orderly conduct and good management of the Competition. Such powers shall include making of rules in respect to registration of players and Club officials, admission and removal of members form the Competition, discipline of members, players and officials, recognition of achievement of members, players and officials and settlement of disputes in relation to all maters over which the Association has power.
- (d) appoint Committee of Management to represent and act on behalf of its Members in accordance with these Rules and good management practices.
- (e) provide for the promotion, encouragement and administration of the sport of Netball
- (f) encourage participation and enjoyment in the Sport of Netball as a means of improving health, fitness and quality of life.
- (g) encourage improvement in the standard of Netball and Sportsmanship generally and endeavour to ensure a high standard of netball is maintained.
- (h) develop a sense of sportsmanship and a high degree of proficiency in our netball competitions, adopting and complying with the rules of the sport of netball
- (i) encourage and promote the health and safety of competitors; enhancing drug free competition
- (j) promote and hold, either alone or jointly, with any other Association, club or person netball competitions, championships, exhibitions meetings and other activities of the Association generally.
- (k) invest and deal with moneys of the Association not immediately required.

## GOLDEN RIVERS NETBALL LEAGUE INCORPORATED BY-LAWS

#### 1) MEMBER CLUBS

Member clubs of the Golden Rivers Netball League Inc. are Hay, Macorna, Moulamein, Murrabit, Nullawil, Quambatook, Ultima, Wakool and Wandella Netball/ Football Netball Clubs.

#### 2) ADMINISTRATION

a) All participating clubs within the League, on a rotation basis as per Annexure A, shall provide the officers of the League and the co-ordinators from time to time. Two clubs will serve one year of office together. Voluntary persons should be considered first for the positions of Coaching Co-Ordinator and Umpiring Co-Ordinator, and if no volunteers are forthcoming, the rotational roster should be utilized.

1<sup>st</sup> Club to provide; President, Vice-President and Secretary

2<sup>nd</sup> Club to provide: Assistant Secretary and Treasurer.

3<sup>rd</sup> Club to provide: Coaching Co-Ordinator.

4<sup>th</sup> Club to provide: Umpiring Co-Ordinator.

A position is deemed "unfilled" should the rostered club fail to nominate the required person(s) for the respective position(s) prior to the first meeting before the commencement of the next playing season. That club must then find suitable replacement(s) from outside their club and any such person is then considered a "volunteer".

**Penalty:** \$200 fine per position unfilled, paid to the voluntary person filling that position by the fourth Monday in April and \$50 fine per position unfilled, paid to the league by the fourth Monday in April.

- b) The By-Laws of the Golden Rivers Netball League may only be changed at the Annual General Meeting or any meeting held prior to the commencement of the playing season. An up to date set of By-Laws is to be available for each club prior to the commencement of the playing season. This is the responsibility of the League Secretary.
- c) The Secretary and each Club must receive all Notices of Motion to amend/add a By-law no less than fourteen days prior to that meeting.
- d) Notice must be given in writing by mail or electronically.
- e) Any member Club breaking the rules stipulated in the Statement of Purposes, Rules or By-Laws of the Golden Rivers Netball League Inc. where a penalty is not stipulated will be fined \$50. The fine will be enforced at the discretion of the committee. Where these By-Laws are silent, a decision can be made that ensures the integrity of the Golden Rivers Netball League is maintained at all times. The committee may in reasonable discretion, at a meeting, in

exceptional or extenuating circumstances, alter, vary or waive the requirements set out in all By-Laws relating to the Golden Rivers Netball League. Any fines incurred during the netball season are to be paid by the following Leagues meeting.

- f) The Assistant Secretary shall keep a record of all player registrations details including;
- Netball Victoria registration numbers,
- ❖ Golden Rivers Netball League Club registrations,
- ❖ Golden Rivers Netball League player qualifications,
- Games played by players,

#### 3) MEETINGS

Any club not represented by one delegate at any compulsory meeting will be fined \$200 per meeting.

#### 4) FINANCE

- (a) Accounts requiring payment shall be ratified at Committee Meetings for approval of payment. Cheques are to be signed by any two Officers of the League.
- (b) All affiliation fees, to be set at the Annual General Meeting, shall be paid to the Treasurer of the League by the fourth Monday in April and failure to pay will result in a \$20 fine per team, per club, per week for the duration the money remains unpaid.
- (c) Registrations must be paid to the Assistant Secretary of the League by the last mail on Wednesday after the player's first game. A team that plays a non-registered player will incur a fine of \$100.
- (d) Clubs must meet all financial requirements of the League.

#### 5) MEMBERSHIP

- (a) All clubs must affiliate and field an A Grade before B Grade before B Reserve, and each club must have an A Grade to be eligible to field under age teams.
- (b) If a Club is unable to Field an A Grade team they may, under special circumstances, apply to the League in writing, stating the reason for the request. The League will than review each submission and make a decision in the best interest of the Club and competition.
- (c) Teams should be entered no later than the sixth round.
- (d) Clubs must field teams regularly.
- (e) If a club participating in the Golden Rivers Netball League competition is an affiliated Netball Victoria Association, they must forward their Netball Victoria membership details to the Assistant Secretary as players are registered.

#### 6) REGISTRATION

Players must be registered with Netball Victoria in the year of competition.

#### 7) AGE REQUIREMENTS

The League will play A, B, B Reserve, 17 & Under and 14 & Under and 12 & Under. Players in 17 & Under and 14 & Under and 12 & Under are to be these ages as at the 31<sup>st</sup> December of current year of competition.

#### 8) INELIGIBLE PLAYERS

- (a) Once a senior player has played a total of seven games in any higher grades during the home and away season, then they are no longer eligible to play in a lower grade including finals. Finals games are not included in the total.All junior players may play unlimited games in senior and junior grades whilst returning ti play in their own grade level during the home and away season. They may play finals in any grade providing the meet the requirements of By-law 16b & 16c.
- (b) If a player is deemed ineligible for 17 & under and 14 & under a penalty will incur.

**Penalty:** A loss four premiership points in the grade played, and if the team won, the results will be deemed a forfeit.

#### 9) CLEARANCES

- (a) A clearance is permission for a player to transfer from the club with which they are currently registered to another club competing in the same competition.
- (b) Clearances are not required in-between seasons.
- (c) A player wishing to obtain a clearance during the current playing season is required to forward a completed Golden Rivers Netball League Application for Clearance to the Assistant Secretary, by mail or fax, prior to taking the court for their new club.
- (d) The player must receive notification of clearance from the league before taking the court with their new club.
- (e) No player will be granted more than one clearance per season.
- (f) A clearance may be denied if the player has outstanding fees, is in possession of club property or will leave a club or team short of players.

- (g) The existing club has five days to forward the Application for Clearance or deny the application or the League will automatically clear the player to the new club.
- (h) If a clearance is denied, the League will advise the player of the reason and a copy in writing by mail or fax to both clubs.
- (i) Any dispute arising from clearance restrictions will be dealt with according to the Grievance Procedure outlined in the Golden Rivers Netball League Rules.
- (j) If a team plays a non-cleared player they will incur a loss of four premiership points.
- (k) If a team with a non-cleared player wins the match, it will be treated as a forfeit as at 14. FORFEITS (a)
- (l) If a team with a non-cleared player has no premiership points, they will incur a fine of \$100
- (m) The games the clearing player has played at the existing club will remain in her tally, with regard to 8. INELIGIBLE PLAYERS, at her new club.

#### 10) SHARED PLAYERS

- 1) Definition: "Shared Player" is a player playing for the opposing team.
- 2) Players required: An Opposition team must present a minimum 5 players to be eligible to request one or two player(s).
- 3) Grades: Open to players as follows:
- (a) Seniors all clubs in each grade.
- (b) Juniors all clubs in each grade playing in their respective age group or Seniors.
- 4) Awards: Shared Players are eligible for B & F Votes as per By Law 17(a) regardless of club played for or number of quarters played.
- 5) Eligibility: Games played are counted as follows for By Law 8:
- (a) If all court time is played for the opposition, the game is not counted as a game played.
- (b) If some court time is played for her own team and some for the opposition, the game is counted as a game played.
- 6) Finals Eligibility: Games played are counted as follows for By Law 16(b):
- (a) If all court time is played for the opposition, the game is not counted as a game played.
- (b) If some court time is played for her own team and some for the opposition, the game is counted as a game played.
- 7) Finals: No player shall be shared during finals.

- 8) Play: Clubs will abide by By Law 13(a) with regards to rules on court.
- 9) Registration: All players are to be register as per By Law 6.
- 10) Awarding of points: The result of the match will be treated as per regular home and away matches in accordance with By Laws 8,9(k), 13(f), 17(a) and 18(b).

#### 11) DRESS CODE

- (a) Team uniforms and colours are to be similar to their football teams. No clubs shall change colour or design of their uniform without first obtaining the consent of the league
- (b) Pants are to be matching uniform or black.
- (c) Clubs are to register any changes to uniforms at the March/April meeting.
- (d) New clubs are to register uniforms at the March/April meeting.
- (e) Full uniforms must be worn. If two teams have similarly coloured uniforms, the visiting team is required to wear distinguishable bibs from the home team if requested by an umpire.
- (f) During the finals, the team finishing lower on the ladder may be requested by the umpires to wear distinguishable bibs.

#### 12) UMPIRES

All clubs must provide an umpire for each grade.

#### 13) CONDUCT OF MATCHES

- (a) All clubs will abide by the playing rules of the Netball Association.
- (b) Home and away matches and the finals of the Golden Rivers Netball League are to be played on the same day and at the same venue as the Golden Rivers Football League Inc.
- (c) The match times will be as follows;

10.15 a.m. 14 & Under 11.30 a.m. 17 & Under

12.45 p.m., 2.00 p.m., 3.15 p.m. Open grades (alternate times each third of season, as below)

- 12 & Under to be played at the same time as the 14 & Under or at a time agreed by the respective Clubs.
- (d) The match rotation for Open Grades will be as follows;

Round 1-6 A Grade B Reserve B Grade

Round 7-12 B Grade A Grade **B** Reserve Round 13-18 B Reserve B Grade A Grade

- (e) The match duration will be as follows;
  - 14 & Under:4 x 15 minute quarters, with 3-5-3 minute breaks

17 & Under, Open grades: 4 x 15 minute quarters, with 3-5-3 minute breaks

- (f) Points shall be allocated as follows;
  - percentage points awarded based on goals scored for and against.
  - Win: 4 points
  - Draw: 2 points
  - Forfeit: see By-Law 15
  - Bye: in the event of a bye caused by an odd number of teams entered into a grade of competition:
    - in a season containing an even number of home and away games, nil points to be award
    - in a season containing an odd number of home and away games, the first round matches shall receive no points, second round matches shall receive 4 points and percentage relative to a 20 goal win.
  - 12 & Under is an unofficial competition, no points will be allocated, no ladders created.
- (g) Clubs that have two courts may, with the permission of the visiting club, play two matches at the same time. They could be played as:

Round 1-6:  $1^{st}$  &  $3^{rd}$  teams at 1.00pm,  $2^{nd}$  team at 2.15p.m. Round 7-12:  $1^{st}$  &  $2^{nd}$  teams at 1.00pm,  $3^{rd}$  team at 2.15pm.

Round 13-18:2<sup>nd</sup> & 3<sup>rd</sup> teams at 1.00pm, 1<sup>st</sup> team at 2.15p.m.

#### 14. SCORING

- (a) All clubs will provide one official to share the scoring and timekeeping roles for each grade. This person must be 14 years or older.
- (b) In home and away matches, scorebooks will be supplied by both teams.
- (c) Both captains and umpires must sign score sheets before they will be deemed official.
- (d) The stroke method of scoring must be used at all times.
- (e) The home team is to fax score sheets to the Assistant Secretary by 9am Sunday morning and forward score sheets and League votes to the Assistant Secretary by the Wednesday after the match. **Penalty:** \$50.
- (f) Substitute players are entered onto the score sheet only when they take the court.

#### 15) FORFEITS

- (a) In the event of a forfeit by a team prior to the game, the opposing team shall receive four premiership points and the percentage relative to a 20 goal to nil win.
- (b) Each club must submit a team sheet signed by the captain and vote cards (marked forfeit) forwarded to the Assistant Secretary as per By-Law 14 SCORING.
- (c) In the event of a forfeit by a team after the commencement of play, the opposing team shall receive four premiership points and the higher of the percentage relative to a 20 goal to nil win and the score recorded at the time of the forfeit.
- (d) Team sheets (signed by both captains and umpires) and vote cards (marked forfeit) must be forwarded by the home Club to the Assistant Secretary as per By-Law 14 SCORING.

#### 16) FINALS MATCHES

(a) Finals matches will be played at the following times;

#### 1<sup>st</sup> Semi, 2<sup>nd</sup> Semi and Preliminary finals:

9.45 a.m.	14 & Under
11.00 a.m.	17 & Under
B Reserve	12.15 p.m.
1.30 p.m.	B Grade
2.45 p.m.	A Grade

#### **Grand Final:**

<u> </u>	
9.15 a.m.	14 & Under
10.45 a.m.	17 & Under
12.15 p.m.	B Reserve
1.45 p.m.	B Grade
3.15 p.m.	A Grade

- (b) To be eligible to play in Golden Rivers Netball League finals, a player must play at least five games with the same Golden Rivers Netball League affiliated club in the current season on separate Saturdays. In any one grade where there is less than six teams competing, a player must play three games with the same Golden Rivers Netball League affiliated club in the current season on separate Saturdays.
- (c) To be eligible to play in the GRNL finals in a particular grade, a player must play at least three games with that grade.
- (d) Any team who plays an ineligible player in finals will incur a penalty of loss of match.
- (e) The officials of the finals shall be badged umpires who are;
  - Neutral to both teams participating in any given final; and
  - Registered with their State Body.

- 'Current' means having attained a theory pass mark of 70% or higher <u>and</u> attended a Level 1 Umpire Clinic within 4 years of the year of competition.
- (f) The timekeepers and scorers shall be supplied by the participating clubs in each of the respective grade.
- (g) The League shall provide the scorebooks.
- (h) Both captains and umpires must sign the score sheets.
- (i) No match shall be a drawn game in the finals. If a draw occurs at the end of play, there shall be a three-minute break, then two times five minutes, then if still a draw, a further two times three minutes, then a two-goal advantage.

#### (17) AWARDS

- (a) The umpires of each home and away game shall select three players and allocate 3, 2 and 1 votes, in order of preference. Such votes are to be used in determining the Best and Fairest players of the league. The full names of these players and the number of votes received by them shall be recorded by the umpires and placed in an envelope, sealed & signed by both umpires across the seal. Home teams shall provide separate envelopes for all grades. In the event of any umpire failing to sign such envelopes/cards, the offending club will be fined \$20 for each unsigned envelope/card. The votes for players will remain valid.
- (b) In the event of 2 or more players having the same amount of votes in the League Vote Count, all players shall be deemed Best and Fairest. There will be no count back.
- (c) Winners of the Premierships will be presented with suitable trophies, cups or awards. The two officiating umpires will chose the Best On Court for each grade on Grand Final Day.
- (d) All clubs in the League will contest for the Fenton Perpetual Trophy for the Championship Club. Points awarded will be 2 points for a win and one point for a draw in any participating competitive grade. In the event of clubs being equal on points at the end of the home and away matches, the winner will be decided on a count back, i.e. most wins in A Grade, then B Grade, etc., down to the lowest junior grade. Winners will be announced at the League Presentation Night.

#### 18) RISK MANAGEMENT

- (a) Clubs must have suitable playing courts with padded goal posts.
- (b) In the event of inclement weather, both umpires shall decide whether or not the court is suitable to play on.
  - If play is abandoned and each team has 5 players present, 2 premiership points will be awarded to each team.

- If play is abandoned and one team has 5 players present and the other less than
   5, the game will be deemed a forfeit against the team with the lesser players.
- If one captain refuses to play, the result will be deemed a forfeit against that team and dealt with as per By-Law 14.
- If play commences and is abandoned, 2 premiership points will be awarded to each team.
- (c) A Prematch Checklist Form is to be completed by a representative of each club and signed prior to the commencement of play at every competing venue. Prematch checklist copy to be forwarded with score sheets to the League Assistant Secretary when an issue if risk has been identified and recorded on the form.
- (d) All courts are to have specified Non-Smoking areas.

#### (e) INJURY REPORTING

- (i) All clubs are responsible for recording all injuries at the discretion of the injured player or players' guardian (if player under 18) on the Injury Report Form RM14.
- (ii)Coaches of GRNL representative teams are responsible for recording all injuries at the discretion if the injured player or players' guardian (if player under 18) on the Injury Report Form RM14.

#### (f) EMERGENCY PROCEDURES

All clubs are encouraged to develop an Emergency Management Plan. The League is responsible for the development of an Emergency Management Plan that includes finals and other competitions involving representative teams.

#### The Emergency Management Plan should:

- (i) be created in consultation with club first aid personnel, coaches, club administrators, trained medical professionals etc.
- (ii) be displayed prominently or be readily available courtside in the event of an injury.
- (iii)include emergency services contact phone numbers, player emergency medical information, injury reporting forms etc.
- (iv)Provide for minimum first aid facilities to be provided for each team at each match played for the season, including finals, complying with Netball Victoria Infonet RM2- First Aid.
- (v)Provide for a qualified first aider present at all competitions and training.
- (vi) Be reviewed annually.

#### (g) CYBERSAFETY POLICY

As per Netball Victoria Cyber safety Policy

- •Section 4 Code of Behaviour
- •Section 6-6.9 Cyber bullying/Safety, 6.10 Social Networking Websites
- •Section 7 Policy Position Statements

All persons registered as a financial member of Netball Victoria are subject to this Policy and Procedure.

The Netball Victoria Cyber safety Policy may be accessed in its entirety at **netballvic.com.au**.

The Netball Australia Member Protection Policy may be accessed in its entirety at **netball.asn.au** 

The GRNL logo or name of the League or an Organising body must not be used in any way which would result in a negative impact for the League, the Organising Bodies, the Affiliated Clubs or their members.

All Registered Members of the GRNL, whether playing or non-playing, have a responsibility to ensure that all online content is kept within the GRNL's expectations in relation to appropriate and respectful communication with any Official, Affiliated Club, Umpire, Coach, Registered Member and/or Organising Body.

#### **Complaints:**

- 1) All correspondence must be lodged in writing from the Club Secretary or Authorised Representative to the League Secretary within 14 days of the incident.
- 2) All correspondence from the League will be addressed to the Club Secretary or Authorised Representative.
- 3) All complaints received relating to Cyber safety Policy shall be referred to the Disputes Tribunal.

#### (h) DISPUTES TRIBUNAL

The League Executive shall appoint a group of people to form its Disputes Tribunal. These people will remain as members of the Tribunal panel until such time as the dispute is resolved. The assistance of the GRFL Independent Tribunal may be enlisted if required. The Tribunal shall have the power to:

- a) Decide any matter that is referred to it for determination.
- b) Issue any warning that is considers appropriate in each case, or
- c) Make any decision or impose any monetary penalty that it considers appropriate in each case, or

d)Make any decision or impose any suspension or disqualification that it considers appropriate in each case.

#### 19) INDEMNITY

Except where provided or required by law and such cannot be excluded, the GRNL and its respective directors, officers, members, servants or agents are absolved from all liability arising from injury or damage, however caused, arising whilst participating as a member.

#### Annexure A

### **Executive Rotation**

#### Year Pres., Vice-P, Sec. Ass Sec., Treas. Ump-Co. Coach-Co.

2000	Murrabit Wakool Macorna Ultima
2001	Moulamein Quambatook Nullawil Wandella
2002	Ultima Hay Wakool Nullawil
2003	Wandella Murrabit Quambatook Macorna
2004	Nullawil Moulamein Hay Wakool
2005	Macorna Ultima Murrabit Quambatook
2006	Wakool Wandella Moulamein Hay
2007	Quambatook Nullawil Ultima Murrabit
2008	Hay Macorna Wandella Moulamein
2009	Murrabit Wakool Macorna Ultima
2010	Moulamein Quambatook Nullawil Wandella
2011	Ultima Hay Wakool Nullawil
2012	Wandella Murrabit Quambatook Macorna
2013	Nullawil Moulamein Hay Wakool
2014	Macorna Ultima Murrabit Quambatook
2015	Wakool Wandella Moulamein Hay
2016	QuambatookNullawilUltima Murrabit
2017	Hay Macorna Wandella Moulamein
2018	Murrabit Wakool Macorna Ultima
2019	Moulamein Quambatook Nullawil Wandella
2020	Ultima Hay Wakool Nullawil

#### Annexure B

#### **Affiliation fees**

\$400 per club per season (to be paid no later than the fourth Monday in April.)

#### Annexure C

#### **Grand Final payments**

\$100 for host club for catering costs at the Grand Final

#### Annexure D

# GOLDEN RIVERS NETBALL LEAGUE INC. Junior Distinction Award

Junior players are eligible for the Golden Rivers Netball Leagues Junior Distinction Award if they suit the following criteria:-

- Player must be under the age of 17&U as of the 31/12 in current season.
- Player may either be playing currently at senior and/or junior level.
- Player has represented the GRNL at senior or junior level. (If Applicable)
- Include the player's netball history (eg. awards, coaching, umpiring, courses, club involvement, club/league level etc...)
- Overall sporting achievements school, sport and community is recognized

All junior distinction award applications must adhere to the following:

- Limit of 50 words in dot point.
- Compulsory comment from the player's coach.
- One nomination per club.
- Players may be nominated for this award each year but can only win it once. (Once the player has won it, they may not be nominated again.)
- Nominations to be in before Round 16 of the home and away season. Nominations to be received by League Secretary by the Friday 31<sup>st</sup> of July, 2009, by 5.00 p.m.
- The judging panel shall consist of the current GRNL President, two life members and Sandra Bennett subject to availability.
- Authorization from parent/guardian for permission of nomination and any future publication of photo's or details contained within this nomination. <u>MUST BE INCLUDED</u>.

• Total submission to be no more than two (2) A4 pages.

# $Annexure \ E$ Golden rivers netball league

#### **Life Membership Nomination Form**

The Golden Rivers Netball League is committed to fostering the development, growth and participation by girls and women through regular competition.

Life membership to the Golden Rivers Netball League is to be presented at the annual Golden Rivers Netball League Presentation in August. Life membership of the Golden Rivers Netball League is an honour bestowed to members who have rendered special or valuable services to the Golden Rivers Netball League well beyond that of the typical member.

Life membership will only be awarded to a person in respect of whom a resolution conferring life membership has been passed at a General Meeting of the GRNL, on the recommendation of the Executive Committee. A life membership so elected becomes entitled without payment of any subscriptions or other monies to all privileges of a financial member of the GRNL. It is not necessary for life memberships to be awarded every year.

#### HOW TO MAKE A NOMINATION FOR LIFE MEMBERSHIP

#### **Eligibility**

The nominee must be a member of the GRNL who has given exceptional and outstanding service to the GRNL.

#### Nominations.

Nominations are to be made on this form, giving the details of the person nominated and brief reasons for the nomination. Nominations must be made and seconded by current GRNL members. Nominations for consideration close on the 30<sup>th</sup> day of April annually.

#### Criteria.

The following criteria should be addressed when nominating a candidate. It is helpful to include examples of how the nominee has gone above and beyond what could reasonably be expected of a member and why their contribution is worthy of recognition through life membership of the GRNL.

The key elements that will be taken into account in awarding Life Membership are:

- An ongoing commitment to the GRNL over many years.
- Contributions to the GRNL which have advanced the standing within its membership and the wider community.
- Commitment which does not seek personal reward, and
- A high level of recognition from the GRNL membership of the nominee's work for the GRNL over a number of years.

#### Assessment.

The current officers of the GRNL from time to time shall constitute an Awards Panel. The Panel shall meet in June of each year to consider nominees for Life Membership in accordance with the above criteria. Any recommendations from the Panel are to be made to the Executive Committee in time for consideration and must be endorsed at a general meeting of the GRNL.

#### **GOLDEN RIVERS NETBALL LEAGUE**

# WHO ARE YOU NOMINATING? Title GivenName\_\_\_\_\_Surname \_\_\_\_ Nominee's address\_\_\_\_\_ Nominee's Contact Phone Number ( ) Email NOMINATION CRITERIA Please briefly explain why the nominee should be considered for life membership (you may add addional comments on a separate paper if space is insufficient) NOMINATOR AND SECONDER DETAILS We, current members of the Golden Rivers Netball League Inc, declare that the information in this form is true to the best of our knowledge and propose the nominee be considered for life membership of the GRNL. \_\_\_\_\_Signed \_\_\_\_\_ Signed Nominator Seconder \_\_\_\_\_Name : \_\_\_\_\_ Name : \_\_ (please print) (please print) Club: \_\_\_\_\_Club: \_\_\_\_\_

Nominations must be emailed, posted or handed to the President of the Golden Rivers Netball League by close of business on the  $30^{th}$  day of April each year.

Contact phone no. ( ) \_\_\_\_\_Contact phone no. ( ) \_\_\_\_\_Email: \_\_\_\_Email: \_\_\_\_

\_\_\_\_\_ Address:\_\_\_\_\_

Date: \_\_\_\_\_/ \_\_\_\_/

Date: \_\_\_\_/ \_\_\_\_/

Address:\_\_\_